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Community Investments Request for Proposal (RFP) 

Frequently Asked Questions 
 

This document will be updated on a weekly basis with new questions and answers. Feel free to reach out 

to us directly with questions not addressed here at rfp@gtcuw.org or 612-340-7691. 
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General Eligibility & RFP Questions 

Eligibility 
1. Who is eligible to apply for funding under this RFP?  

Core eligibility requirements for applicants include:  

• Classified by the IRS as a 501(c)(3) tax-exempt organization. 

• Serving people in GTCUW’s nine-county metro region. 

• Show 60% or more of program participants are living at 200% of poverty or below at 

program enrollment/entrance by portfolio. Applicants can use a variety of proxies for this 

including SNAP, AMI, Medical Assistance, MinnesotaCare, free or reduced lunch or others 

as applicable.   

• Provide organization’s equity statement. 

• Have a mission that aligns with GTCUW. 
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• Organization has been in operation for at least three years. 

• Have an annual operating budget of at least $250,000 beginning 2019. 

• Able to demonstrate that GTCUW funds will be no more than 20% of the organization’s 

budget. 

• Have an annual audit (if required) performed by a certified public accountant. 

Organization’s with a Going Concern on their most recently completed audit will not be 

eligible. 

• Meet board of directors requirements as outlined by Minnesota law. 

 

Please note that individual portfolios may have additional eligibility criteria.  For additional 

information please refer to the RFP document on in the RFP Guidelines (GTCUW.ORG/RFP). 

 

2. May I apply for the Community Investments RFP if I am not currently receiving funding from 

GTCUW? 

Yes. The RFP will be an open and competitive grant making process regardless of whether your 

organization currently receives GTCUW funding. Any organization who meets the eligibility 

requirements and performs work pursuing the outcomes detailed in the RFP are encouraged to 

apply.  

 

3. My client population is children with disabilities. Many of them receive Medical Assistance, a 

proxy listed above for income level, though most of their caregivers/families are not living at 

200% of poverty or below. Is my organization eligible? 

The proxies for income listed under question 1 are meant to provide alternative options for 

organizations that do not directly collect income information to show they meet the income 

eligibility requirement for this RFP. Organizations that work with children living in families above 

the income threshold would not meet the eligibility criteria, regardless of if the child receives 

Medical Assistance or not. 

 

Partnerships 
If you are interested as applying as a partnership, we highly encourage you to contact our team to 

discuss before applying. Contact information is at the bottom of this document. 

1. If I am applying for a partnership, who should complete the application? 

Partnering applicants should elect one organization to be the lead applicant. This organization 

will complete the proposal and if awarded the grant, will receive funding and be responsible for 

reporting requirements.  

 

2. How is Greater Twin Cities United Way defining a partnership? 

Understanding that creating long-term solutions to the outcomes defined in this RFP are 

enhanced by holistic thinking, GTCUW encourages applicants who may not be eligible on their 

own, to pursue partnerships with other organizations that are directly eligible. Successful 

applicants will demonstrate how their partnership will meet the outcomes included in the RFP.  
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Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs) or other similar agreements between successful 

partnership applications will be required at the time of funding agreements (estimated in May 

2019).  

 

3. I am part of an established coalition/collective that would like to apply. Are we eligible? 

Coalitions or collectives (groups of organizations) that meet the eligibility requirements and feel 

their work fits within the RFP are welcome to apply. We recommend coalitions or collectives 

considering applying reach out to us, so we can support them in filling out the application. 

 

Application/RFP Questions 
1. I’m interested in applying for multiple portfolios. How should I do this? 

When starting an application in our online portal you’ll be asked to check boxes for the 

portfolio(s) you intend to apply within. The questions you see appear in the rest of the form will 

depend on which boxes you select, so please be sure of the area(s) you select before you get 

started. To read about each portfolio please review our full RFP Guidelines (GTCUW.ORG/RFP) 

before starting your online application.  

 

2. I changed my mind and no longer want to apply for a portfolio I selected.  What should I do? 

Unfortunately, our online system does not easily allow applicants to edit the portfolio selected 

in Section A. of the application.  Please reach out to us at rfp@gtcuw.org or 612-340-7691 to 

make any edits to this portion of the application. 

 

3. What do I need to know about the required Equity Statement? 

GTUCW is requiring all applicants to submit an Equity Statement as part of their application. This 

statement should speak to how your organization defines and aspires toward equity in its work. 

The statement can be an internal document and is not required to be approved by your board. 

GTUCW has chosen to adopt Policy Link’s Equity Manifesto as the guiding document in its equity 

work (policylink.org/resources-tools/equity-manifesto). 

 

4. My program is part of a much larger institution (i.e.; university, hospital system, etc.). Am I 

still eligible to apply? How should I address the organizational narrative questions (Section B) 

in the application? 

As long as your parent institution meets the core eligibility criteria outlined in the RFP and your 

program/activities meets the portfolio area eligibility outlined in the RFP, you are eligible to 

apply. For the application, please note the following two directions: 

• For the Financial Review section of the application (Section F) please use your parent 

organization’s financials. We may follow-up to request additional financials from your 

program’s perspective.  

• For the Organizational Narrative section of the application (Section B), please reach out 

to us at rfp@gtcuw.org or 612-340-7691 for further guidance. We may instruct you to 

fill out Section B from your program’s perspective as opposed to your organization’s 

mailto:rfp@gtcuw.org
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perspective but will need to understand the context of how your program fits within 

your parent organization. 

 

5. Question 7 in the application seems to be focused on organizations who are applying for 

multiple portfolios. How do we answer it if we are applying with only a single portfolio? 

Question 7 has three sections and should be answered by all applicants. The first section, 7a. 

asks about challenges your organization aims to address. The second section, 7b. asks 

organizations to speak to how they bring holistic solutions to the table to address the whole 

person or families. Even if you are applying within one portfolio area, we are interested in 

how/if your organization works beyond a single service area to address the challenges you speak 

to in section 7a. Similarly, the third section, 7c. asks about resources and changes needed to 

work more effectively across portfolios. Please answer this question from a holistic lens as well. 

For example, what changes to funding streams would be needed to allow you to do your work 

more holistically and better serve the whole person.  

 

 

Demographics, Outcomes and Indicators 
1. What are your expectations around tracking individuals and families at 200% of poverty or 

below? 

We recognize that income data is not always accessible, but we ask that all funded organizations 

do their best to gather this information, either during an intake process or via the use of a proxy, 

such as eligibility for government programs like SNAP, Medical Assistance, MinnesotaCare, free 

or reduced lunch or others as applicable.   

 

2. Should my demographic information (Section D of the Application) include everyone served 

within the portfolio for which I am applying? 

Yes, it should include all participants regardless of income level. The intent of the portfolio-

specific demographics information is to understand the total number of people or households 

receiving services under the portfolio area regardless of service delivery location or income 

level. 

 

3.  What should I report on as my most recently completed year in my demographic information 

(Section D of the Application)? 

In the demographics section of the application, we ask for program demographics for your 

“Most Recently Completed Program Year.”  For this column of the demographics information, 

we are looking for the most recent demographic information for your program year (as you 

define it).  For some applicants this may be based on the 2017-18 summer and school year (ex. 

July 2017 – June 2018) and for other applicants this could be their expected Jan-Dec 2018 

demographics.  Both are acceptable examples of demographics for your most recently 

completed year. 
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For your “Proposed with grant award (July 2019-June 2020)” demographic information however, 

we are asking for your proposed demographic information for July 2019-June 2020 specifically.  

Please note that this may result in a “gap year” between your most recently completed year and 

your proposed with grant award demographic information, which is fine. 

 

4. Are there a minimum number of participants required for this grant? 

There is no minimum requirement for participant number.  

 

5. Who should be included in the Outcome and Indicators section?  

For each proposed indicator, include only the number of people who 1) are at or below 200% of 

Federal Poverty Guidelines, AND 2) who will meet the stated indicator.  For example, in the 

demographics section for the portfolio (Section D), an organization may indicate they serve 100 

people and 80 of those people are at or below 200% of the Federal Poverty guidelines.  Then in 

the indicator section (Section E) organizations would report on the number of the 80 youth at or 

below 200% the Federal Poverty guideline that the program is committing to meeting that 

indicator. 

 

6. Are evaluations required and, if so, will United Way help to pay for them? 

At this time we are not requesting a formal evaluation and are not offering funding for such. 

However, United Way funds are not restrictive and can be used to pay for evaluations as the 

grantee sees fit.  

 

7. Is United Way requiring programs to use a specific measurement or tool to track indicators? 

United Way does not require organizations to use specific measurements, tools, or frameworks.  

Rather the RFP offers recommendations for evaluation resources related to the stated 

indicators.  Applicants will have the opportunity to propose frameworks, tools and measures for 

their evaluation purposes based on their program needs, experience, capacity and the systems 

they have in place. 

Review Process 
1. When is the application period?  

The RFP opens on November 13, 2018 and will close on January 8, 2019 at 3:00 p.m. 

 

2. Who will be reviewing the proposals? 

Proposals will be reviewed and scored by GTCUW staff. Each proposal will be reviewed by at 

least three staff and receive three scores which will be averaged. A Community Advisory Council 

will be advising on the scoring and decisions. 

 

3. How will proposals be scored?  
Our scoring breakdown is available for you to review in our RFP Guidelines (GTCUW.ORG/RFP). 
The application also provides additional information on how questions will be scored. 
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4. Does every applicant get a site visit? 

No. Due to the competitive nature of this funding opportunity, only some applicants will be 

invited to participate in a site visit. Those invited to a site visit will have scored in the higher 

range of scores. Applicants will be notified if they are receiving a site visit or not in late-

January/early-February.    

 

5. Does receiving a site visit mean I’m likely to receive funding? 

Not necessarily. Due to the high volume of applications we receive and availability of funding, 

we anticipate only being able to fund a portion of applicants who receive a site visit. 

 

Grant Terms 
1. When will funding begin for those who are awarded a grant under this RFP? 

Grant funding will begin July 1, 2019 

 

2. What is the anticipated grant term? 

Grants are awarded for one year. Grant agreements may be renewed on an annual basis 

through June 30, 2022 based on compliance, available funding and performance against stated 

outcomes. 

 

3. What is the anticipated reporting structure if I’m awarded a grant? 

Organizations should expect to complete an annual report on progress toward the outcomes 

and activities. Grantees should expect to report quantitative outcome results, demographics as 

well as answer qualitative (narrative) questions.  

 

4. What is the anticipated payment structure? 

GTCUW will electronically deposit 1/12th of the grant amount each month for 12 months in the 

checking/savings account you provide. 

 

5. If an organization is funded, how much money can they expect to receive? 

We anticipate the minimum grant amount to be $50,000 with an average grant amount of 

$75,000 for each portfolio area. Grantees will receive ONE organizational grant based on the 

number of portfolio areas that were successful under this RFP.  For example, an organization 

that is successfully funded and receives the minimum award in three portfolios ($50,000 per 

portfolio) under this RFP may expect a total organizational grant award of $150,000.   

 

Funding is not guaranteed to match the level requested in the proposal as funding levels are 

informed by multiple factors such as funds available, proposal score, etc. GTCUW will 

communicate funding amount to the proposer before any grant agreement is signed and may 

provide the opportunity to negotiate indicator targets based on level of investment.   
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6. When will proposing organizations be notified about funding? 

All applicants will be notified of funding decisions in April of 2019 following GTCUW board 

approval. 

 

7. How much funding is available? How much do you intend to fund in each impact area? 

We anticipate awarding up to $14 million total in grants to qualified non-profits to pursue the 

outcomes detailed in this RFP. Funding by impact area is unknown at this time. It will be 

dependent on the volume and quality of applications received. 

 

Impact Area & Portfolio Specific Questions 
 

Educational Success 

 

Early Childhood Specific Questions 
1. Is my program eligible? 

For both Early Care and Parenting Programs, the two important eligibility questions for the RFP 

are 1) is your organization a 501(c)(3) tax-exempt organization, and 2) not a public, private, 

and/or charter K-12 schools or school-operated program.   

While public, private, and charter K-12 schools and school-sponsored programs are not eligible, 

programs operated by eligible proposers that are located in schools or in university settings are 

eligible to apply.   

 

2. My organization does work that meets both the Early Care and Parenting eligibility criteria. 

Can we apply for funding for both?  

Yes, organizations may apply for funding for either strategy, or both. If you apply for funding for 

both, please clearly delineate and address the approach and outcomes for both in your 

application.   

 

3. Is my Early Care program eligible? 

To be eligible, organizations must demonstrate they meet the following criteria: 1) Are either 

Parent Aware 3- or 4-star rated OR accredited through an accredited body recognized by the 

Minnesota Department of Human Services (i.e. NAEYC, NECPA or COA); and 2) Use Parent 

Aware-approved research-based curricula and assessments. 

 

4. Is my Parenting program eligible? 

To be eligible, organizations must demonstrate they meet the following criteria: 1) Programs 

provide a minimum of weekly intervention that occurs over a minimum of six months though 

programs designed to target longer periods of a year or more will be more competitive in this 

area; and 2) Focus on both child and family development. Programs should support the social, 
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emotional, cognitive, language, and physical development of each child, as well as the 

development of strong, positive relationships between the parents or caregivers and child. 

 

5. If my organization applies for both Early Care and Parenting outcomes, how should I calculate 

the number of children and families served? 

Please list for Outcome 1.1-1.4 the unique number of children or families served. Do not double 

count the individuals served, if your program reaches the same individuals in both your early 

childhood program and parenting efforts. 

Career and Future Readiness Specific Questions 
1. Is my program eligible? 

The two most important eligibility questions for the new RFP are 1) is your organization a 

501(c)(3) tax-exempt organization, and 2) not a public, private, and/or charter K-12 schools or 

school-operated program.  Additionally, programs that only serve grades K-5 or 12+ are 

ineligible. While public, private, and charter K-12 schools and school-sponsored programs are 

not eligible, programs operated by eligible proposers that are located in schools or in university 

settings are eligible to apply.   

 

2. How will GTCUW prioritize middle school programs 

Programs that serve mostly middle school youth (I.e. >50% youth grades 6-8) will be scored 

higher than other programs. 

 

3. Is my program for high school students eligible under this portfolio? 

To be eligible programs must serve youth in the 6-12 grade range.  Ineligible programs are those 

which only serve youth grades K-5 or above 12th grade. 

 

4. How do you define Middle School? 

We define middle school as grades 6-8. 

 

5. On page 18 of the RFP it says, “GTCUW will invest in expanded learning opportunities 

including after-school, positive youth development and summer programs and activities . . .”  

Is there significance to the word expanded? 

In this sentence, we use the word expanded to highlight GTCUW’s intention of supporting 

educational experiences outside of the traditional school day.  If your program offers these 

types of educational opportunities for youth outside of the regular school day, your program 

meets this expectation. 

 

Economic Opportunity Specific Questions 
1. Where can I find out more detail about how to define indicators 1.1-1-4 and 2.1-2.3?  

        We adopted The Blueprint for Minnesota’s Career Pathways Community of Practice definitions    

        and measures for indicators 1.1-1-4 and 2.1-2.3. We strongly suggest that these    
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        measures be used, yet, are open to other measures that are broadly utilized in the field.  

 

2. In the RFP, Indicator 1.3 is different than in the online application. Which is correct? 

We apologize for the discrepancy! The correct indicator for 1.3 is in the online application: 

Number of individuals who complete a training program. As of 12/3/2018, the RFP has been 

updated to correct this error.  

 

Household Stability 
 

Housing Specific Questions 
1. What is your definition of homelessness? 

We are utilizing the MHFA definition of homelessness, which includes: 

• An individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence, 

such as those living in emergency shelters, transitional housing, or places not meant for 

habitation, or 

• An individual or family who will imminently lose their primary nighttime residence 

(within 14 days), provided that no subsequent housing has been identified and the 

individual/family lacks support networks or resources needed to obtain housing, or   

• Unaccompanied youth under 25 years of age, or families with children and youth who 

qualify under other Federal statutes, such as the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act, 

have not had a lease or ownership interest in a housing unit in the last 60 or more days, 

have had two or more moves in the last 60 days, and who are likely to continue to be 

unstably housed because of disability or multiple barriers to employment, or  

• An individual or family who is fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence, has no 

other residence, and lacks the resources or support networks to obtain other 

permanent housing. 

 

People and families who are doubled up, couch-hopping, or will lose their housing within 14 

days with no subsequent housing or resources lined up CAN BE included in this definition. 

 

2. What is your definition of “chronic homelessness”? 

We will utilize both the MHFA definition of Long-Term Homeless (LTH), as well as the MHFA 

definition of High Priority Homeless (HPH). A person or family meets the definition of LTH if the 

individual or family has experienced homelessness for an entire year OR three episodes of 

homelessness within the past four years. There is no requirement of a disabling condition, and 

couch-hopping and being doubled up are considered episodes of homelessness.  An individual or 

family meets the definition of HPH if they are prioritized for permanent supportive housing by 

the Coordinated Entry system based on their assessment.  

 

3. I’m a property developer/owner, and I contract with organizations to provide supportive 

services at our developments. Can I apply? 
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Unfortunately, no. Unless your organization is providing the supportive services, you are not 

eligible. However, the organization you contract with for supportive services is welcome to 

apply. 

 

4. Does the definition of supportive housing require a rental subsidy? 

Rent support must be part of your supportive housing; however, it does not have to be a strict 

subsidy. For example, if you own a building and allow participants to pay no rent or offer 

reduced rents (e.g., 30% of income), you are eligible. If you are providing services at an 

affordable housing complex, but do not offer participants rental supports, discounts, or 

subsidies, you would not be eligible to apply. 

 

5. Are we required to use the VI-SPDAT in assessing barriers to housing? 

No, we recognize that the VI-SPDAT doesn’t work for everyone. If you would like to use a 

different assessment, please describe it in the application and explain why you would rather use 

that assessment. Variants on the VI-SPDAT will also be accepted. 

 

6. My organization does both barrier mitigation and permanent supportive housing. Can I apply 

in both? 

Yes. You are allowed to apply in one, two, or all of the indicator tracks (1.1 & 1.2, 1.3 & 1.5, 1.4 

& 1.5) for work that you are currently doing OR work that you would like to begin with United 

Way funds. 

 

7. My organization works to help people overcome a barrier and access housing. Should I include 

all of those people in indicator 1.1? 

No. You should only include people you work with who are a) experiencing homelessness as 

defined by Minnesota Housing Finance Agency, AND b) are unlikely to be placed in supportive 

housing (as evidenced by a score of less than 4 on the VI-SPDAT or another measure outlined in 

the application). If the participant does not meet both those criteria, they should not be 

included in indicator 1.1. 

 

8. There is a typo in the numbering of the housing indicators.  

Indicator 1.4: Number in supportive housing who make progress on as self-identified goal should 

be numbered 1.5. Apologies for the error!  

 

Food Security Specific Questions 
1. Please provide more clarification around Indicator 1.2. Is it only focused on mobile food 

shelves and meal delivery? 

Indicator 1.2 in the RFP is intended to focus on expanding or improving access to food for those 

that may have challenges reaching traditional food shelf or meal programs within regular 

business hours. 

The RFP lists mobile food shelves and food delivery services as two examples of ways to address 

this barrier. Other examples could include expanded night and weekend hours that allow more 
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flexibility and time for people to access services, partnerships with non-food security providers 

to bring food to places where people live, work, and play or other solutions that address the 

barrier of proximity/geography in accessing food. 

 


